

CPE – I am a contact of a carrier/person who is infected

Infection Control Team

Patient Information Leaflet

Carbapenemase-producing Enterobacteriaceae – I am a contact of someone who is a carrier or has an infection – what does this mean?

What does 'carbapenemase-producing Enterobacteriaceae' mean?

Enterobacteriaceae are bacteria that usually live harmlessly in the gut of humans. This is called 'colonisation' (a person is said to be a carrier). However, if the bacteria get into the wrong place, such as the bladder or bloodstream, they can cause infection.

Carbapenems are one of the most powerful types of antibiotics. Carbapenemases are enzymes (chemicals), made by some strains of these bacteria, which allow them to destroy carbapenem antibiotics and so the bacteria are said to be resistant to the antibiotics.

Why does carbapenem resistance matter?

Carbapenem antibiotics can only be given in hospital directly into the bloodstream. Until now, doctors have relied on them to successfully treat certain 'difficult' infections when other antibiotics have failed to do so. Therefore, in a hospital, where there are many vulnerable patients, spread of resistant bacteria can cause problems.

Does carriage of carbapenemase-producing Enterobacteriaceae need to be treated?

If a person is a carrier of carbapenemase-producing Enterobacteriaceae (sometimes called CPE), they do not need to be treated. As mentioned, these bacteria can live harmlessly in the gut. However, if the bacteria have caused an infection, antibiotics will be required.

How is carbapenemase-producing Enterobacteriaceae spread?

If a patient in hospital is carrying these bacteria, they can get into the ward environment and can also be passed on by direct contact with that patient.

For that reason, the patient will normally be accommodated in a single room. Effective environmental cleaning and good hand hygiene by all, staff and patients, can reduce the risk of spread significantly.

Do I need to be screened?

Occasionally people need to be screened. It is not immediately known that a patient is carrying these bacteria and so they may not be placed into a single room straight away.

Screening will be offered if you have shared the same bay (or ward) with a patient who has been found to be carrying carbapenemase-producing Enterobacteriaceae. This screening is offered as there is a **slight** chance that you could have picked up the bacteria and are carrying them too.

How will I be screened for carbapenemaseproducing Enterobacteriaceae?

Screening usually consists of taking a rectal swab by inserting it just inside your rectum (bottom). Alternatively, you may be asked to provide a sample of faeces.

The swab/sample will be sent to the laboratory and you will normally be informed of the result within two to three days. If the result is negative, nothing further is required unless you are staying in hospital for some time. In that case, you will probably be asked to provide a sample on a regular basis, for example once a week, as a precautionary measure.

What if the result is positive?

If the result is positive, do ask your doctor or nurse to explain this to you in more detail, and to provide a leaflet relating to positive results (CPE – I may be a carrier or have an infection). You will be given a single room until you leave hospital. No treatment is necessary unless you have an infection, when antibiotics will be given.

Where can I find more information?

If you would like any more information, please speak to a member of your care staff, who may also contact the Infection Prevention and Control Team for you.

Reference

Public Health England (2013). Acute trust toolkit for the early detection, management and control of carbapenemase-producing Enterobacteriaceae. London: PHE publications.

If you have any questions, or if there is anything you do not understand about this leaflet, please contact:

Infection Control Team on 01384 244174 (9am to 5pm, Monday to Friday)

Russells Hall Hospital switchboard number: 01384 456111

This leaflet can be downloaded or printed from:

http://dgft.nhs.uk/patients-and-visitors/patient-information-leaflets/ If you have any feedback on this patient information leaflet, please email dgft.patient.information@nhs.net

This leaflet can be made available in large print, audio version and in other languages, please call 0800 073 0510.

للحصول على هذه النشرة بحجم أكبر، وعلى شكل إصدار صوتي و بلغات أخرى، الرجاء الاتصال بالرقم 08000730510.

此宣传单可提供大字版本、音频版本和其它语言版本,请拨打电话: 0800 073 0510。

Ulotka dostępna jest również w dużym druku, wersji audio lub w innym języku. W tym celu zadzwoń pod numer 0800 073 0510.

ਇਹ ਪਰਚਾ ਵੱਡੇ ਅੱਖਰਾਂ, ਬੋਲ ਕੇ ਰੀਕਾਰਡ ਕੀਤਾ ਹੋਇਆ ਅਤੇ ਦੂਸਰੀਆਂ ਭਾਸ਼ਾਵਾਂ ਵਿਚ ਵੀ ਪ੍ਰਾਪਤ ਹੋ ਸਕਦਾ ਹੈ, 0800 073 0510 ਤੇ ਫੋਨ ਕਰੋ ਜੀ।

Aceasta brosura poate fi pusa la dispozitie tiparita cu caractere mari, versiune audio sau in alte limbi, pentru acest lucru va rugam sunati la 0800 073 0510.

یہ کتابچہ آپ کو بڑے حروف کی لکھائی ، سمعی صورت اور دیگر زبانوں میں مہیا کیا جا سکتا ہے برائے مہربانی فون نمبر 08000730510 رابطہ کریں۔

Originator: Infection Control Team/Public Health England. Date reviewed: October 2020. Next review due: July 2023. Version: 4. DGH ref: DGH/PIL/01082